
 United Nations  E/2012/SR.47

  
 

Economic and Social Council  
Provisional 
 
5 December 2012 
 
Original: English 

 

 

Corrections to this record should be submitted in one of the working languages. They should be 
set forth in a memorandum and also incorporated in a copy of the record. They should be sent 
within one week of the date of this document to the Chief, Official Records Editing Section, 
room DC2-750, 2 United Nations Plaza. 

12-43950 (E) 
*1243950*  
 

Substantive session of 2012 
General segment 
 

Provisional summary record of the 47th meeting 
Held at Headquarters, New York, on Thursday, 26 July 2012, at 3 p.m. 
 

 President: Mr. de Alba (Vice-President). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (Mexico) 
 
 
 

Contents 
 

 

Coordination, programme and other questions (continued) 

(e) Long-term programme of support for Haiti (continued) 

Implementation of the Declaration on the Granting of Independence to Colonial 
Countries and Peoples by the specialized agencies and the international institutions 
associated with the United Nations (continued)  

Economic and social repercussions of the Israeli occupation on the living conditions 
of the Palestinian people in the Occupied Palestinian Territory, including East 
Jerusalem, and the Arab population in the occupied Syrian Golan (continued) 

 



E/2012/SR.47  
 

12-43950 2 
 

In the absence of Mr. Koterec (Slovakia), Mr. de Alba 
(Mexico), Vice-President, took the chair. 
 

The meeting was called to order at 3.10 p. m. 
 
 

Coordination, programme and other questions 
(continued) 
 

 (e) Long-term programme of support for Haiti 
(continued) (E/2012/87, E/2012/L.16) 

 

Draft resolution entitled “Ad Hoc Advisory Group on 
Haiti” (E/2012/L.16) 
 

1. Mr. Gustafik (Secretary of the Council) 
announced that Australia, the Bahamas, Benin, Brazil, 
Chile Cyprus, El Salvador, Guatemala, Haiti, Israel, 
Japan, Luxembourg, Mexico, Spain and the United 
States of America had become sponsors of the draft 
resolution. 

2. Mr. Morrill (Canada) said that Austria, Finland, 
France, Germany, Italy, the Netherlands, Peru, 
Romania, Slovenia, Sweden and Trinidad and Tobago 
had also become sponsors. 

3. Mr. Gustafik (Secretary of the Council) reporting 
on the programme budget implications of the draft 
resolution, said that, should the Council adopt the draft 
resolution, it was estimated that the support to be 
provided to the Ad Hoc Advisory Group would consist 
of travel, daily subsistence allowance and terminal 
expenses for all members of the Group and two staff 
members of the Department of Economic and Social 
Affairs to conduct a consultation meeting with the 
Bretton Woods institutions in 2013 and a mission to 
Haiti in April 2013. Meeting support services in Haiti 
would also be required.  

4. In the report of the Secretary-General on the 
revised estimates resulting from resolutions and 
decisions adopted by the Council at its substantive 
session of 2011 (A/66/510), the General Assembly had 
been informed that the requirements of the Ad Hoc 
Advisory Group for 2012, estimated at $21,900, would 
be met within the provisions proposed under section 9, 
Economic and social affairs, of the programme budget 
for the biennium 2012-2013. The Group had been 
expected to travel to Haiti in April 2012; however, the 
mission had taken place in May 2012 at a total cost of 
$13,119, which reflected the level of support provided 
to the Advisory Group to date.  

5. The additional resources required for the 
consultative missions to Haiti and Washington in 2013 
were estimated at $17,500, for which provision had not 
been made in the programme budget for 2012-2013. It 
was, however, anticipated that the requirements of 
those missions would be met within the resources 
approved for section 9 of the aforementioned 
programme budget. Accordingly, no additional 
appropriation would be required. 

6. He drew attention to section VI of General 
Assembly resolution 45/248 B and subsequent 
resolutions, most recently resolution 66/246, in which 
the Assembly had reaffirmed that the Fifth Committee 
was the appropriate Main Committee of the General 
Assembly entrusted with responsibilities for 
administrative and budgetary matters; it had also 
reaffirmed the role of the Advisory Committee on 
Administrative and Budgetary Questions in that regard. 

7. Draft resolution E/2010/L.16 was adopted. 
 

Implementation of the Declaration on the Granting 
of Independence to Colonial Countries and Peoples 
by the specialized agencies and the international 
institutions associated with the United Nations 
(continued) (E/2012/68-A/67/84; E/2012/L.22) 
 

Draft resolution entitled “Support to Non-Self-
Governing Territories by the specialized agencies and 
international institutions associated with the United 
Nations” (E/2012/L.22) 
 

8. The President said that the draft resolution had 
no programme budget implications. 

9. Mr. Cacciaguerra Ranghieri (Italy) said that he 
was not in a position to accept the text of the resolution 
and it had been his understanding that it would not be 
adopted by consensus. 

10. Ms. Robl (United States of America) requested a 
recorded vote. 

11. A recorded vote was taken. 

In favour: 
Australia, Bahamas, Bangladesh, Belarus, Brazil, 
Burkina Faso, Cameroon, Chile, China, Comoros, 
Cuba, Democratic Republic of the Congo, Ecuador, 
Egypt, El Salvador, Ethiopia, India, Indonesia, Iraq, 
Lesotho, Libya, Malawi, Mexico, Mongolia, 
Nicaragua, Pakistan, Philippines, Qatar, Rwanda, 
Senegal, Switzerland, Turkey. 



 E/2012/SR.47
 

3 12-43950 
 

Against:  
None. 

Abstaining:  
Argentina, Bulgaria, Canada, Finland, France, 
Germany, Ireland, Italy, Japan, Latvia, Netherlands, 
Republic of Korea, Russian Federation, Slovakia, 
Spain, Ukraine, United Kingdom of Great Britain 
and Northern Ireland, United States of America. 

12. The draft resolution was adopted by 32 votes to 
none, with 18 abstentions. 

13. The President said he hoped that delegations’ 
doubts about the resolution would be resolved and that 
consensus would be reached in the future. 

14. Mr. Stancanelli (Argentina) stressed that the 
newly adopted resolution must be implemented in 
accordance with the decisions and resolutions of the 
General Assembly and those of the Special Committee 
on Decolonization regarding specific territories. His 
delegation reserved its position concerning the 
statement, in paragraph 5 of the report of the President 
of the Council on consultations with the Special 
Committee on the Situation with regard to the 
Implementation of the Declaration on the Granting of 
Independence to Colonial Countries and Peoples 
(E/2012/47), that “... FAO works with the 16 Non-Self-
Governing Territories mainly to tackle coastal 
environmental protection concerns” pending the receipt 
of additional information that his delegation had 
requested from the Food and Agriculture Organization 
of the United Nations (FAO). 

15. Ms. Robl (United States of America) said that, as 
in the past, her delegation had abstained from voting 
on the draft resolution because, while it agreed in 
principle that United Nations funds, programmes and 
specialized agencies could usefully provide support to 
territories that were not members of the Organization 
so long as the domestic laws and policies of the 
territory’s administering Power allowed such support, 
it was the responsibility of the administering Power to 
accept or reject such support and to determine its 
nature. Under the Constitution of the United States of 
America, the federal Government had sole responsibility 
for the conduct of the State’s foreign relations, including 
those of its territories. Her delegation was concerned 
that the proposed language of the draft resolution 
infringed upon the internal constitutional arrangements 
of the United States.  

16. The President said that if there was no objection, 
he would take it that the Council wished to take note of 
the report of the Secretary-General on Assistance to the 
Palestinian People (E/2012/68-A/67/84). 

17. It was so decided. 
 

Economic and social repercussions of the Israeli 
occupation on the living conditions of the Palestinian 
people in the Occupied Palestinian Territory, 
including East Jerusalem, and the Arab population in 
the occupied Syrian Golan (continued) (E/2012/L.21) 
 

Draft resolution entitled “Economic and social 
repercussions of the Israeli occupation on the living 
conditions of the Palestinian people in the Occupied 
Palestinian Territory, including East Jerusalem, and the 
Arab population in the occupied Syrian Golan” 
(E/2012/13-A/67/91; E/2012/L.21) 
 

18. Mr. Djacta (Observer for Algeria), speaking on 
behalf of the Group of 77 and China, said that he 
wished to have Palestine, which was a member of the 
Group of 77 and China but not a Member State of the 
United Nations, added as a sponsor of the resolution. 

19. The President said that the draft resolution had 
no programme budget implications. 

20. Ms. Robl (United States of America), speaking in 
explanation of vote before the voting, said that, as in 
previous years, the draft resolution was one-sided and 
failed to take a constructive approach that would 
advance the prospects of peace. Her Government had 
been working tirelessly to bring about a just, lasting 
and comprehensive resolution of the Israeli-Palestinian 
conflict. The Council should focus on creating an 
environment conducive to renewed peace talks; support 
for a two-State solution meant supporting both parties, 
treating them fairly and with respect, expressly 
acknowledging the positive steps taken by both of them 
and not singling out one of them for criticism.  

21. The United States was the largest bilateral donor 
to the United Nations Relief and Works Agency for 
Palestine Refugees in the Near East (UNWRA) and 
contributed significantly to other United Nations 
programmes providing assistance to the Palestinian 
people. It remained deeply engaged with the situation 
in Gaza and would continue to work with the 
Palestinian Authority, Israel and international partners 
to improve the lives of Palestinians. It was committed 
to working with the Quartet and regional States to 



E/2012/SR.47  
 

12-43950 4 
 

restart direct talks on the core issues with a view to 
achieving a just, lasting and comprehensive peace in 
the Middle East based on a two-State solution that 
established a viable, independent and contiguous State 
of Palestine living in peace and security alongside a 
secure, Jewish and democratic State of Israel. However, 
owing to the unbalanced nature of the resolution, her 
delegation had no choice but to vote against it. 

22. A recorded vote was taken. 

In favour: 
Argentina, Bahamas, Bangladesh, Belarus, Brazil, 
Bulgaria, Burkina Faso, Chile, China, Comoros, 
Cuba, Dominican Republic, Ecuador, Egypt, 
Ethiopia, Finland, France, Germany, India, 
Indonesia, Iraq, Ireland, Italy, Japan, Latvia, 
Lesotho, Libya, Malawi, Mexico, Mongolia, 
Netherlands, Nicaragua, Pakistan, Philippines, 
Qatar, Republic of Korea, Russian Federation, 
Rwanda, Senegal, Slovakia, Spain, Switzerland, 
Turkey, Ukraine, United Kingdom of Great 
Britain and Northern Ireland. 

Against: 
Canada, United States of America. 

Abstaining: 
Australia, Cameroon, El Salvador. 

23. The draft resolution was adopted by 45 votes to 2, 
with 3 abstentions. 

24. Mr. White (Australia) said that his delegation 
had moved from its customary negative vote to an 
abstention out of concern for the economic and social 
well-being of the Palestinian people. It supported the 
call for the development of Palestinian national 
institutions and recognized the seriousness of the 
humanitarian situation in the Palestinian territories, 
especially Gaza. His delegation was also troubled by 
the expansion of Israeli settlements in the Occupied 
Palestinian Territory. He stressed, however, that 
Israel’s security concerns were legitimate and the 
rocket attacks and weapons smuggling must stop. The 
only way to end the conflict was to find a solution that 
allowed a secure Israel to live side by side in peace and 
security with an independent Palestinian State.  

25. Mr. Ó Conaill (Ireland) speaking on behalf of the 
European Union, said that while the delegation of 
Palestine had shown great flexibility during 
negotiations on the text of the resolution, the European 
Union believed that the political aspects of the problem 

were best addressed within the framework of the 
General Assembly. He stressed the responsibility of all 
parties to take steps to improve the social and 
economic condition of the people of Gaza and, while 
fully recognizing Israel’s legitimate security needs, 
called for the immediate, sustained and unconditional 
opening of border crossings to allow the flow of 
humanitarian aid, commercial goods and persons to 
and from the Gaza Strip. He reiterated the full support 
of the European Union for a two-state solution with the 
State of Israel and an independent, democratic, 
contiguous, sovereign and viable State of Palestine 
living side by side in peace, security and mutual 
recognition.  

26. Ms. Morgan (Mexico) said that, as on previous 
occasions, her delegation had voted in favour of the 
resolution and had deep concerns about the 
repercussions of the occupation for the human rights 
and sustainable development of the Palestinians. She 
called on the Quartet to intensify efforts to restart 
direct negotiations, which were the only way to renew 
the peace process.  

27. Mr. Morrill (Canada) said that his delegation had 
voted against the resolution because of its frustration 
with the large number of unbalanced resolutions on the 
Middle East that had been introduced. 

28. Ms. Rasheed (Observer for Palestine) said that 
affirmations of Palestinian rights such as those 
contained in the resolution were more meaningful than 
ever in the face of Israel’s ongoing and escalating 
illegal policies and practices and blatant contempt for 
the United Nations and international processes. The 
adherence of Member States to the fundamental 
principles of international law, including human rights 
and humanitarian law, had helped to alleviate the grave 
inequities and injustices imposed on the Palestinian 
people in over 45 years of occupation as they struggled 
for an independent State with Jerusalem as its capital 
on the basis of the pre-1967 borders. The resolve of 
Member States had preserved the prospects for a 
two-State solution even as its viability was being 
eroded by continued Israeli settlement activity.  

29. It was imperative for the international community 
to demand that Israel cease its illegal, expansionist 
campaign immediately and comply fully with its 
obligations under international law. Far from being 
biased, the resolution merely provided a small glimpse 
of the tragedy inflicted on the Palestinian people by 



 E/2012/SR.47
 

5 12-43950 
 

Israel under the occupation. She thanked the 
delegations that had voted for right over might, thereby 
sending a strong message of solidarity with the 
Palestinian people.  

30. Ms. Davidovitch (Observer for Israel) said her 
delegation was disappointed that, once again, Israel 
was the only country to be singled out for biased 
treatment under an item on the Council’s agenda. The 
resolution was politically motivated and factually 
flawed; it wasted the Council’s valuable time and 
resources and undermined its credibility.  

31. The reality was that per capita gross domestic 
product (GDP) in Gaza had grown by 20 per cent in 
2011 and unemployment was at its lowest level in 
10 years. Gaza’s exports were growing rapidly and not 
a single civilian good was prevented from entering the 
area. The cause of the crisis was the rule of Hamas, an 
internationally recognized terrorist organization that 
was not mentioned in the resolution, which attacked 
the crossings used to transfer humanitarian aid and 
then complained about shortages and delays. Hamas 
used Palestinian schools as launching pads and had 
fired over 200 rockets into southern Israel in the past 
two months alone, most recently into the city of 
Ashkelon, which was home to over 100,000 people. 
Yet Israel continued to provide humanitarian assistance 
and to cooperate with international organizations in the 
very areas from which its citizens were being attacked.  

32. A thriving Palestinian economy was in Israel’s 
interests. The West Bank’s public and manufacturing 
sectors had grown and its economy was relatively 
stable despite the ongoing global economic and 
financial crisis. Israel had the same vital interests as its 
neighbours, including the environment, public health, 
sanitation, agriculture and women’s empowerment. The 
many existing mechanisms would be more effective if 
the Palestinian Authority cooperated with Israel on 
those issues and met its commitments under bilateral 
agreements. The sponsors of the resolution were 
promoting an agenda that sought to demonize Israel 
and were not serving the interests of the Palestinian 
people.  

33. Ms. Rasheed (Observer for Palestine) said that 
Israel was being singled out in resolutions because it 
was the only occupying Power in the world. When the 
occupation ended, so would the resolutions.  

34. The President said that if there was no objection, 
he would take it that the Council wished to take note of 

the note by the Secretary-General on the economic and 
social repercussions of the Israeli occupation on the 
living conditions of the Palestinian people in the 
Occupied Palestinian Territory, including East Jerusalem, 
and of the Arab population in the occupied Syrian 
Golan (E/2012/13-A/67/91). 

35. It was so decided. 

The meeting rose at 4.05 p.m. 


